
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, MARCH 17, 2014 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 3, 2014: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Special Assessment District No.2014-01.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 for Special Assessment District 

No.2014-01, setting a Public Hearing for April 21, 2014 to gather citizen comment regarding the 
necessity of the proposed project for Elm Street from Main Street to River Street for street 
reconstruction. 

 
2. Special Assessment District No.2014-03.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 for Special Assessment District 

No.2014-03, setting a Public Hearing for April 21, 2014 to gather citizen comment regarding the 

AKKirkland
Sticky Note
Information for Consent Items 1 & 2 will be posted as soon as it becomes available.



 

2 
 

necessity of the proposed project for Washington Street from Stewart Street to Corunna Avenue for 
street reconstruction. 

 
3. Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Confirm the Mayoral appointment of Elaine Greenway as the 

City Council Representative to the Historical Commission. 
 
4. Downtown Farmers Market Permission.  Consider approving the application of the Downtown 

Owosso Farmers Market for use of Exchange Street between Water Street and Washington Street 
from 7:00 am to 1:15 pm on consecutive Saturdays from May 3, 2014 through October 25, 2014 
(using Exchange Street from Ball Street to Park Street on June 7, 2014 to accommodate the 
Curwood Festival) for the 2014 Downtown Owosso Farmers Market and authorize Traffic Control 
Order No. 1305 formalizing the request.   

 
5. Downtown Farmers Market Annual Block Party Permission.  Consider approving the application of the 

Downtown Owosso Farmers Market for use of Exchange Street between Ball Street and Washington 
Street from 3:00 pm to 9:00 pm on Saturday, April 26, 2014 for the Downtown Owosso Farmers 
Market Annual Block Party and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1306 formalizing the request.   

 
 
6. Warrant No. 479.  Authorize Warrant No. 479 as follows: 

 
Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Logicalis, Inc 
Network engineering support – 
February 2014 

General $ 7,140.00 

Brown & Stewart PC 
Professional services  
February 10, 2014 – March 10, 2014 

General $ 9,247.16 

 
7. Check Register–February 2014. Affirm check disbursements totaling $2,281,433.29 for the month of 

February 2014. 
  
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. TAP Grant Application.  Consider application to the MDOT Transportation Alternatives Program for 

funds to improve the James Miner Riverwalk and adjacent retaining wall in the area of the Main Street 
Bridge.   

 
2. General Engineering Services Contracts.  Consider contracting with the Spicer Group, Fishbeck 

Thompson Carr & Huber, Inc., and Fleis & Vendenbrink Engineering, Inc. to provide professional 
engineering services for future engineering projects in accordance with the City Purchasing Policy for 
a period, renewed annually, through June 30, 2017. 

 
3. Traffic Signal Cost Sharing Agreements.  Approve cost sharing agreements with MDOT for traffic 

signals installed as a part of the M21/M52 reconstruction project. 
 
4. Gould Street Bridge Rehabilitation Agreement.  Approve execution of an agreement with the Michigan 

Department of Transportation for the rehabilitation of the Gould Street Bridge over the Shiawassee 
River in the amount of $23,239.00. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  February 2014 Building Department Report. 
2. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  February 2014 Code Violations Report. 
3. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  February 2014 Police Report. 
4. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  February 2014 Fire Report. 
5. Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of February 24, 2014. 
6. Planning Commission.  Minutes of February 24, 2014. 



 

3 
 

7. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of March 5, 2014. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 31, 2014, Planning Session 
Monday, April 07, 2014, Regular Meeting 
 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Historical Commission, term expiring December 31, 2014 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 
with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing or calling 
the following:  Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867 or at (989) 725-
0500. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 03-03-2014 

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 3, 2014                                                                                      7:30 P.M. 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR BENJAMIN R. FREDERICK 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  REVEREND SUSAN KINGSLEY 
    TRINITY UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MICHAEL ESPICH 
 PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION CHAIRMAN 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor Pro-Tem Christopher T. Eveleth, 

Councilpersons Loreen F. Bailey, Burton D. Fox,  
Elaine N. Greenway, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: Councilperson David B. Bandkau. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the agenda with the following changes: 
 
 Add Presentation 1.  HOPE Project. 
 Add Item of Business 3. Purchase of Street Lamps & Posts. 
 Move Consent 3. Curwood Castle Couches to Item of Business 4. 
 
 Note the additional attachment for Item of Business 1.  Lighting Upgrade Agreement. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
 
Motion by Councilperson Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 18, 2014 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
HOPE PROJECT  (Added to the Agenda)   
 
Pastor Marlene Webster detailed the collaborative effort of numerous area organizations to combat 
poverty, named the HOPE Project.  She indicated that 1 in 4 children live in poverty in Shiawassee 
County and the group is looking for ways to help people permanently emerge from poverty.  She 
announced an event at the Baker College Welcome Center on March 27th from 8:00 am to noon to kick off 
the effort and talk about specific things that can be done to educate the community and combat poverty. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
  



Draft 2 03-03-2014 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, business owner at 118 South Washington Street, said he has a mission to help those in 
poverty and noted that he was extremely pleased that Habitat for Humanity has expressed a desire to re-
establish a presence in Shiawassee County.  He went on to say that he felt the organization would be 
thwarted in its efforts to help people in the City because they would be prohibited from building alternative 
housing because the City’s current zoning laws are too restrictive.  He asked that Council change the 
laws back. 
 
Pastor Marlene Webster, 407 Woodhall Court, indicated she had spoken with Habitat for Humanity 
representatives and they confirmed their desire to come back to Shiawassee County.  She went on to say 
that they indicated to her they would be concentrating on fixing existing homes rather than building new 
homes as they have done in the past.   
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, said he felt that Ms. Webster was on the right track with her efforts 
to help those in poverty. 
 
Mayor Frederick said the announcement of Habitat for Humanity’s return to the county was a great thing.  
He said he too had met with a delegation from the organization and that they had indicated they would be 
concentrating on rehabilitating existing homes, though new builds were not off the table.  He went on to 
say that he would like to have another look at the design standards ordinance to potentially make 
changes that would allow more diversity.   
 
Mayor Frederick announced the arrival of Ethan David Bandkau, born Saturday, March 1st.  This is the 
first child for Councilperson Bandkau and his wife. 
 
Councilperson Fox said he was dead set against repealing all of the design standards that were 
implemented.  He said some adjustments did seem to be in order but he cautioned that Council had no 
chance of pleasing everyone all the time and that there was merit in the current ordinance.  He went on to 
say that there is a great area on Rain Street that would be ideal for a Habitat build as it is currently vacant 
and could be moved unto the tax rolls if it is developed.  Lastly, he noted his continued desire to see the 
establishment of agreements with non-taxable entities within the City to fund the provision of emergency 
services to non-taxable properties. 
 
Mayor Frederick noted that he had observed some “net zero” homes in the Traverse City area that would 
be very exciting to have in the City. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth inquired about the long-standing request for audio and video upgrades to provide 
better access to public meetings through the City’s cable access channels and website.  City Clerk Amy 
K. Kirkland noted she continues to work on the project and that its complexity has delayed proposals to 
this point.  She indicated she will have a proposal for the project in the upcoming budget and Council 
would need to choose from various options to reach a comfortable balance between cost and the 
provision of services. 
 
Councilperson Teich indicated he would like to have more information on the City’s commitment with 
Charter Communications for the provision of cable services in the City.  City Manager Donald D. Crawford 
briefly described the current agreement with Charter saying the control that municipalities used to have 
with cable franchises no longer exists and that while the City receives a franchise fee for the company’s 
use of City right of ways the City has no control over their broadcast or what they charge customers.  He 
went on to say that the City has the additional challenge of establishing a new connection to the Charter 
head end as the company has indicated the City will no longer be able to utilize the current path to 
introduce programming onto the cable system.  Lastly, he noted that Charter does not have an exclusive 
contract with the City and any other cable company that is interested in providing service to area 
residents is welcome, and that this open arrangement has allowed a second cable provider, TVC, to 
provide service to limited areas of the City. 



Draft 3 03-03-2014 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Crawford detailed the Project Status Report, specifically noting that the Howard Street 
reconstruction project will have to wait until next year as drainage issues in the area proved to be far 
more complex than originally anticipated.  He also noted the M21/M52 reconstruction project will be 
running from April to October with some work occurring at night in order to take advantage of cooler night-
time temperatures and to advance the timeline for the project. 
 
Mayor Frederick inquired whether the City will have the funding necessary to handle the extraordinary 
number of potholes that are anticipated this spring.  City Manager Crawford said that he anticipated that 
most City streets were in decent overall shape and would hold up to the stresses of the spring thaw ok.  
Director of Public Services Sedlak said his crews had been too busy repairing broken water mains and 
thawing frozen water services to repair existing potholes, but he anticipated that once the weather 
reached 30°-35° his crews could move to street patching projects. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Mid-Michigan Custom Car Show Permission.  Approve application of Andy Genovese on behalf of the 
Mid-Michigan Custom Car Show for use of Washington Street from Main Street to Mason Street and 
Exchange Street from Water Street to Park Street from 8:00am to 6:00pm on Sunday, May 18, 2014 for 
the Mid-Michigan Custom Car Show and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1307 formalizing the request.   
 
Water Treatment Plant Lime Transfer PO Extension.  Approve waiving competitive bidding procedures, 
authorizing an extension of Purchase Order No. 41533 with Sumbera Excavating, Inc. for transfer of lime 
sludge at the Water Treatment Plant for additional work in an amount not to exceed $30,000, and further 
authorizing payment up to that amount upon satisfactory completion of the work as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-2014 
 

AUTHORIZING EXTENSION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH  
SUMBERA EXCAVATING INCORPORATED   

TO TRANSFER AND STACK LIME RESIDUAL MATERIAL  
AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

ON A LABOR AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL BASIS NOT TO EXCEED $30,000 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined it necessary and prudent to transfer and stack lime residual material 
at its Water Treatment Plant lagoons to improve dewatering, gain lagoon capacity, and reduce future 
handling costs, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City evaluated alternate proposals and means for accomplishing this work and 
determined the most cost-effective means readily available was on a labor and equipment rental basis as 
proposed by Sumbera Excavating, and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed cost is within the current Water Fund budget allocation for sludge handling, and  
 
WHEREAS, time is of the essence due to weather conditions and Water Plant operating requirements.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to waive further competitive bid procedures and extend the existing 
agreement with Sumbera Excavating on a labor and equipment rental basis not to 
exceed $30,000. 



Draft 4 03-03-2014 

 
SECOND: The purchase contract is in the form of a city purchase order on a labor and equipment 

rental basis, and the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to 
Sumbera Excavating in an amount, certified correct by the City Utilities Director, up to but 
not exceeding $30,000 upon satisfactory completion of the work.   

 
THIRD: The above expense shall be paid from the Water Fund. 

 
Curwood Castle Couches.  (This item was moved to Item of Business 4.) 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Bailey, Greenway, Teich, Fox, and Mayor 

Frederick.  
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilperson Bandkau. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
CONSUMERS ENERGY LIGHTING UPGRADE AGREEMENT 
 
Mayor Frederick noted the additional attachment for this item spelling out the contract between the City 
and the contractor for the project. 
 
City Manager Crawford briefly described the upgrade project saying he anticipated seeing similar projects 
in the future as the Federal government is now requiring power companies to put money back into the 
communities in which they function.  The project will involve the change out of certain lighting fixtures at 
various City properties to more energy efficient fixtures.   He noted the City will pay approximately 
$43,000 for its share of the project and is expected to recoup the funds in the form of electricity savings in 
slightly over a year and a half. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve a participation agreement with Consumers Energy for 
exterior and interior lighting upgrades at select locations for more energy efficient fixtures as a part of 
their Small Business Solutions Program as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-2014 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS FOR PARTICIPATION IN 
THE CONSUMERS ENERGY SMALL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PROGRAM 
AND WITH WALTER MECHANICAL SERVICES, INC. D/B/A AIT GROUP 

FOR EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR LIGHTING UPGRADES 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan, has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to upgrade exterior and interior lighting which will result in energy savings; and 
 
WHEREAS, through the Consumers Energy Small Business Solutions Program the city can receive in 
excess of $50,000 in a one-time utility rebate; and 
 
WHEREAS, with a one-time investment of approximately $50,000 the city will recoup its investment in 19 
months through savings in reduced energy costs. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city of Owosso, county of Shiawassee, state of Michigan: 



Draft 5 03-03-2014 

 
FIRST: that the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 

and in the public interest to participate in the Consumers Energy Small Business 
Solutions Program with Walter Mechanical Services, Inc. d/b/a AIT Group as the 
program approved contractor. 

 
 SECOND: that the city of Owosso will appropriate $50,000 of general fund balance as the city’s 

one-time investment to match the Consumers Energy payment to the approved 
contractor. 

 
THIRD: that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to 

sign the necessary documents with Consumers Energy and Walter Mechanical 
Services, Inc. d/b/a AIT Group as attached along with change orders that may 
become necessary.* 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Greenway, Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Teich, Bailey, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilperson Bandkau. 
 

*Due to its length, full text of the agreement is not printed in the minutes.  Full copies of the agreement can 
be found on file in the Clerk’s Office, along with copies of the City’s contract with contractor Walter 
Mechanical Services, Inc. d/b/a AIT Group. 

 
DIG GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
City Manager Crawford gave a presentation on the proposed projects the City would undertake with the 
funds awarded from the DIG Grant, including the creation of additional parking near Curwood Castle 
Park, the redevelopment of the area surrounding the Armory, and improvement of the walkways and 
infrastructure surrounding the Armory, Matthews Building, and City Hall.  He cautioned the Council saying 
the risks of accepting the grant are significant because of the very short timeline by which construction 
must be completed, the uncertain nature of the costs to be borne by the City, and the fact the project is 
tied, in part, to the success of the Armory redevelopment.  Lastly, he gave a breakdown of estimated 
expenses:   
 
 City of Owosso = $125,000 (or more depending on the success of the Armory project) 
 DDA = $245,000 
 Shiawassee Arts Council = $1,000 
 Friends of the Shiawassee River = $2,000 
 
There was brief discussion among Council members.  Mayor Frederick noted the risks but said he felt the 
results would be worthy of the risks.  Councilperson Fox noted the risks as well but said there could be 
big dividends. 
 
Motion by Councilperson Fox to approve the DIG Grant Agreement with the Michigan Strategic Fund for 
the Riverfront Renovation Project as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-2014 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT  



Draft 6 03-03-2014 

WITH THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, recognizes the importance of its 
downtown and downtown institutions as they relate to the economic and cultural development of the 
community, as well as the overall quality of life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Master Plan, Park Plan, and DDA plan indicate that investment in the downtown 
infrastructure is essential to the community’s future; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need to provide for improvements related to public parking, building relocation, 
trailhead provision, trail improvements, and river improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, application was made to and approved by the MEDC for a downtown infrastructure grant; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the MEDC and MSF have awarded said grant to the city of Owosso; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city must execute and enter into a grant agreement with the MSF for the amount of 
$695,264 to formalize the responsibilities of all parties involved.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to execute a grant agreement with the Michigan Strategic Fund in 
the amount of $695,264.  

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Grant Agreement between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and the Michigan Strategic Fund up to the amount of $695,264.* 

 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Fox, Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons, Greenway, Bailey, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilperson Bandkau. 
 

*Due to its length, full text of the agreement is not printed in the minutes.  Full copies of the agreement can 
be found on file in the Clerk’s Office. 
 
PURCHASE OF STREET LAMPS AND POSTS  (This item was added to the agenda)   
 
Staff indicated this purchase was routine in that its purpose was to replace the inventory of Chairman 
lights kept on hand for use in the downtown.   
 
There was a brief discussion regarding the flags and brackets on the lamp posts.  Mayor Frederick noted 
there is a Main Street committee that is tasked with dealing with such issues and could be contacted for 
further information. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the purchase of 12 street lamps and posts from Spring City 
Electrical Mfg. Co., Inc. in the amount of $29,736.00 as follows: 



Draft 7 03-03-2014 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 26-2014 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 

FOR THE PURCHASE OF DECORATIVE STREET LAMPS AND POSTS 
FROM SPRING CITY ELECTRICAL MFG. CO., INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Department of Public Services has a 
duty to maintain the decorative street lamps in the downtown area of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received four (4) bids from vendors through the MITN system with the low 
bid received from Spring City Electrical Mfg. Co., Inc.; and it is hereby determined that Spring City 
Electrical Mfg. Co., Inc. is qualified to provide such equipment and that it has submitted the responsible 
and responsive bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase 12 decorative lamps and posts from Spring City Electrical Mfg. 
Co., Inc. for a cost to the City of Owosso of $29,736.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of Owosso, Michigan and 
Spring City Electrical Mfg. Co., Inc. up to the amount of $29,736.00. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from inventory – account number 101-000-160000 

upon satisfactory receipt of the merchandise. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Teich, Bailey, Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Greenway, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilperson Bandkau. 

 
CURWOOD CASTLE COUCHES  (This item was moved from the Consent Agenda)  
 
Councilperson Bailey inquired why Council was approving this purchase instead of the Historical 
Commission.  Councilperson Greenway noted the purchase was over $5,000 and as such had to be 
confirmed by City Council.    
 
There was discussion regarding whether the Historical Commission would be able to meet its other 
obligations if the purchase was authorized.  Councilperson Greenway indicated the Commission felt it 
would be able to meet all its obligations. 
 
Motion by Councilperson Bailey to confirm the Historical Commission’s authorization to purchase two 
custom couches for Curwood Castle from Melco Interiors in the amount of $5,389.20 (with the removal of 
the sales tax noted on the estimate), and further confirm payment from the Historic Home Tour fund up to 
that amount upon satisfactory completion of the project as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2014 



Draft 8 03-03-2014 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

THE PURCHASE OF CUSTOM COUCHES FOR CURWOOD CASTLE 
FROM MELCO INTERIORS OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

  
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission, a Charter Commission of the City of Owosso,  has 
been charged with the responsibility of maintaining the historic buildings owned by the City, and of 
promoting the appreciation of architecture and history to the general public and citizens alike and 
collecting and displaying object of historical interest; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission has determined that Owosso’s most iconic building is 
Curwood Castle, and that Curwood  as an author and conservationist is largely unappreciated and 
undervalued; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Owosso Historical Commission determined by vote to elevate Curwood Castle to a first 
rate museum by increasing interest both in the man Curwood and his body of works, and the historic 
building itself; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission approved by vote to refurbish the Castle according to 
existing photos of the Great Room with Curwood present; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the OHC voted to earmark monies earned from the Owosso Historic Home Tour to recreate 
the atmosphere and setting of Curwood’s time at his Castle, replicating the interior furnishings according 
to the existing photos; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the OHC has selected for purchase custom-made sofas as some of the first items to be 
added to furnish the Castle; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the OHC has selected local vendor Melco Interiors to perform this work based on 
historically related products they have produced or refurbished in the past. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan, that:   
 

FIRST: The Owosso City Council concurs with the Historical Commission that it is beneficial to 
preserve and promote the history of one of the City’s foremost citizens and to increase 
tourism through careful additions to the collection of Curwood Castle. 

 
SECOND:   The Council hereby approves of the purchase of two custom sofas from Melco Interiors of 

Owosso for display in Curwood Castle.     
 
THIRD:   Expenses in the amount of $5,389.20 shall be paid from the Owosso Historical 

Commission Historic Home Tour Fund. 
 
FOURTH: Payment of up to $5,389.20 is hereby authorized upon satisfactory completion of the 

project. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Bailey, Greenway, Teich, 

and Mayor Frederick.  
 
NAYS: None. 
 



Draft 9 03-03-2014 

ABSENT: Councilperson Bandkau. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mark A. Sedlak, Public Services Director.  Expanded work hours for the M52 & M21 construction project. 
Richard C. Williams, Finance Director.  Revenue & Expenditure Report – January 2014. 
Historical Commission.  Minutes of January 13, 2014. 
Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of February 5, 2014. 
Historical Commission.  Minutes of February 10, 2014. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission Chairperson Michael Espich was on hand to announce the 3rd annual 
Plunge for Parks event to be held March 22nd at 2:00pm at Hopkins Lake.  Money raised will go toward an 
ice skating rink in Bentley Park, with the goal to raise $6,000.  He noted that all donations are tax 
deductible.  Mayor Frederick said he was excited to be a part of the event again this year. 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, spoke about the new property tax exemption for disabled veterans.  
He also noted that he would be video-taping the Home Expo again this year. 
 
Dan Harrow, 432 Mason Street, said he believed Council had their hearts in the right place but he was 
frustrated by their acceptance of a $600,000+ grant as the funds for that grant came from tax payers, 
many of whom are living paycheck to paycheck.  He said government was out of touch with reality and he 
felt it was contributing to the demise of the United States.   
 
Councilperson Fox noted that he had recently heard about a new program to benefit veterans and he was 
trying to get more information about it. 
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 17, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 31, 2014 – 5th Monday Planning Session 
 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth for adjournment at 9:06 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: March 12, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Kevin Lenkart, Public Safety Director 
 
SUBJECT: Farmers Market Permission 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommend approval of the application of the Downtown Owosso Farmer’s Market and authorization of 
Traffic Control Order No. 1305 for the closure of Exchange Street from Water Street to Washington Street 
on consecutive Saturdays from May 3, 2014 thru October 25, 2014 from 7:00 AM to 1:15 PM for the 
Owosso Farmers Market. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:     
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

           
 ORDER    DATE    TIME 
 NO. 
  1305      02/21/2014        11:30 AM 
           
           REQUESTED BY 
    
  Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety    
   
           
           TYPE OF CONTROL 
   Closure of Exchange Street between Water Street east to Washington Street 
   on consecutive Saturdays from May 3, 2014 thru October 25, 2014 from 
   7:00 AM to 1:15 PM for the Owosso Farmers Market 
 
 
   Owosso Farmers Market         
           LOCATION OF CONTROL 
   Exchange Street between Water Street and Washington Street. 
           
 
 
     APPROVED BY COUNCIL       20    
           
 REMARKS 
 
 
    
   
   
 



AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
X











 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: March 12, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Kevin Lenkart, Director of Public Safety  
 
SUBJECT: Traffic Control Order 1306 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommend approval of the application of the Downtown Owosso Farmer’s Market and authorization of 
Traffic Control 1306 for the closure of Exchange Street between Ball Street and Washington Street on 
April 26, 2014 for the Owosso Farmer’s Market Annual Block Party. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Cynthia Kriesel, Executive Secretary Owosso Public Safety    

 
 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

           
 ORDER    DATE    TIME 
 NO. 
  1306         02/21/2014            11:43 AM 
           
           REQUESTED BY 
    
  Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety    
   
 
           
           TYPE OF CONTROL 
   Closure of Exchange Street between Ball and Washington Streets on April 26, 2014  
   from 3:00 PM to 9:00 PM 
 
 
   Owosso Farmers Market Annual Block Party      
           LOCATION OF CONTROL 
   Exchange Street Between Ball and Washington Streets. 
           
 
 
     APPROVED BY COUNCIL       20    
           
 REMARKS 
 
 
    
   
   
 



AKKirkland
Typewritten Text

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
X











 
 

WARRANT 479 
March 11, 2014 

 
Vendor Description Fund Amount 

    
    
Logicalis, Inc Network engineering support –

February 2014 
 

     General  $ 7,140.00 

Brown & Stewart PC Professional services February 
10, 2014 – March 10, 2014 
 

  General  $ 9,247.16 

    
    
    
  Total $16,387.16 
    

 



1

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank 1 GENERAL FUND (POOLED CASH)
02/03/2014 1 122541 OBERLE LAURIE UB refund for account: 2281740006 66.30$                
02/03/2014 1 122542 ENLOW,  JOYCE UB refund for account: 2540490001 67.74$                
02/03/2014 1 122543 L.M. HOMES LLC UB refund for account: 2354190002 85.93$                
02/03/2014 1 122544 HOOKER ANDRA UB refund for account: 1493500002 45.10$                
02/03/2014 1 122545 DAVIS YOLANDA/TERRY UB refund for account: 3366870005 22.33$                
02/03/2014 1 122546 YAROCH BRANDON UB refund for account: 1082000005 62.34$                
02/03/2014 1 122547 GURU SATENDRA UB refund for account: 2598540005 38.75$                
02/03/2014 1 122548 ELLEN POCHERT TRUST UB refund for account: 1063000001 33.50$                
02/03/2014 1 122549 ORIN JANICE UB refund for account: 1627500006 33.12$                
02/03/2014 1 122550 HEINTZ LINDSAY UB refund for account: 3950570007 48.78$                
02/03/2014 1 122551 KARLIK ROBERT UB refund for account: 1883500003 99.40$                
02/03/2014 1 122552 BRUDER RICHARD UB refund for account: 1154500003 62.70$                
02/03/2014 1 122553 MANDOKI L JEANNE UB refund for account: 1430500001 65.40$                
02/03/2014 1 122554 MILLER DAVE UB refund for account: 3089570002 20.39$                
02/03/2014 1 122555 BEACHAM DAHLIA UB refund for account: 4035300002 58.47$                
02/03/2014 1 122556 HOLLAND BARB UB refund for account: 1752500011 95.00$                
02/03/2014 1 122557 HOLLAND BARBARA UB refund for account: 2624200008 43.70$                
02/03/2014 1 122558 ALS LABORATORY GROUP WASTEWATER ANALYSES-1/16/14 205.00$              
02/03/2014 1 122559 DOROTHY M BACK PURCHASE OF PROPERTY 56,916.86$        
02/03/2014 1 122560 BROWN & STEWART P C PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 9,041.76$           
02/03/2014 1 122561 C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. MONITOR 994.82$              
02/03/2014 1 122562 CALEDONIA CHARTER TOWNSHIP PER 7/1/06 WATER DISTRICT AGREEMENT 16,580.61$        
02/03/2014 1 122563 CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC/GAS SERVICE 25,112.74$        
02/03/2014 1 122564 SCOTT D DAVIS REIMBURSEMENT 5.85$                   
02/03/2014 1 122565 DUPERON CORPORATION WWTP-SCREENING EQUIPMENT 2,605.00$           
02/03/2014 1 122566 FLEIS & VANDENBRINK OSHA HAZARD COMMUNICATION STANDARD CLASS 50.00$                
02/03/2014 1 122567 FRONTIER PHONE SERVICE 1,190.21$           
02/03/2014 1 122568 GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC QUICKLIME-44.93/TONS 6,290.20$           
02/03/2014 1 122569 GREAT LAKES CENTRAL RAILWAY INC SIGNAL DEVICES MAINT 2013-S CHIPMAN/CEDAR 1,590.00$           
02/03/2014 1 122570 HURON & EASTERN RAILWAY COMPANY INC MAINTENANCE OF ACTIVE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 8,254.00$           
02/03/2014 1 122571 INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO INC SUPPLIES 91.73$                
02/03/2014 1 122572 INTERSTATE BILLING SERVICE INC PARTS 283.61$              
02/03/2014 1 122573 LAKESIDE EQUIPMENT CORPORATION PARTS 1,946.00$           
02/03/2014 1 122574 MCLAREN RENTALS, INC. DEMO HAMMER 43.20$                
02/03/2014 1 122575 MCNAUGHTON-MCKAY ELECTRIC COMPANY VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES 23,723.52$        
02/03/2014 1 122576 MICHIGAN BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP-JESSICA UNANGST 140.00$              
02/03/2014 1 122577 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE WORKERS' WORKERS COMP PMT-4TH INSTALLMENT 26,697.00$        
02/03/2014 1 122578 MICHIGAN PUBLIC EMPLOYER LABOR RELATIONS PROGRAM REGISTRATION-JESSICA UNANGST 45.00$                
02/03/2014 1 122579 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLIES 341.78$              
02/03/2014 1 122580 OWOSSO BOLT & BRASS CO PARTS 23.60$                
02/03/2014 1 122581 OWOSSO CHARTER TOWNSHIP PER 2011 WATER AGREEMENT 12,563.87$        
02/03/2014 1 122582 OWOSSO CHARTER TOWNSHIP TREAS & OUTDOORS PLUS ASSESSMENTS PER CONSERVATION EASEMENT AG 293.86$              
02/03/2014 1 122583 OWOSSO CHARTER TREA & JOHN D FISHER ASSESSMENTS PER CONSERVATION EASEMENT AG 131.72$              
02/03/2014 1 122584 OWOSSO CHARTER TWP TREAS & EVERGREENS INC ASSESSMENTS PER CONSERVATION EASEMENT AG 235.04$              
02/03/2014 1 122585 OWOSSO CHARTER TWP TREAS & NORTHWOOD MOBILE HOME ESTATES ASSESSMENTS PER CONSERVATION EASEMENT AG 985.85$              

                                                 CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF OWOSSO                                                 
                                              CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2014 - 02/28/2014                                              



2

02/03/2014 1 122586 RICOH USA COPIERS BILLING 10/21/13-1/20/14 322.23$              
02/03/2014 1 122587 SIGNATURE AUTO GROUP OF OWOSSO 2014 FORD INTERCEPTOR POLICE VEHICLES (2) 53,806.00$        
02/03/2014 1 122588 SLINGERLAND CHRYSLER DODGE INC SERVICE ON WWTP PICK UP 321.95$              
02/03/2014 1 122589 TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY SUPPLIES 44.94$                
02/03/2014 1 122590 USA BLUE BOOK WWTP-SONIC PRO ULTRASONIC FLOW METER 3,100.98$           
02/03/2014 1 122591 WEB ASCENDER WEBSITE HOSTING-JAN/FEB/MAR 2014 150.00$              
02/03/2014 1 122592 WILLOUGHBY PRESS WWTP/WTP-TIME CARDS (3000) 218.75$              
02/03/2014 1 96(A) JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC. SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 3,496.33$           
02/03/2014 1 97(A) LOGICALIS INC DECEMBER 2013-NETWORK ENGINEERING SUPPORT 6,188.00$           
02/03/2014 1 98(A) REHMANN ROBSON FINAL BILLING-AUDIT OF YE 6/30/13 7,000.00$           
02/03/2014 1 99(A) YORK REPAIR INC WTP-REPAIR 425.00$              
02/07/2014 1 100(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER CONTRACT OFFICER-41/HRS 750.30$              
02/07/2014 1 122593 MICHAEL LEVERE ASH CONTRACT OFFICER-47/HRS 860.10$              
02/07/2014 1 122594 TYLER JOHN LEPPANEN INTERN EXPENSES 213.35$              
02/07/2014 1 122595 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTION 828.96$              
02/07/2014 1 122596 POWERS, MORGAN REFUND OF OVERPAYMENT 50.00$                
02/11/2014 1 101(A) BROOKS INNOVATIVE GRAPHICS DPW SIGN/INVENTORY SHEETS (1000) 605.00$              
02/11/2014 1 102(A) CORE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION OPD-TALON DESKTOP CLIENT-SUPPORT 402.00$              
02/11/2014 1 103(A) MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC PACK JOINTS/FLAGS 1,287.54$           
02/11/2014 1 104(A) MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE, INC. REPAIR CLAMP 143.43$              
02/11/2014 1 105(A) NAPA AUTO PARTS PARTS 1,080.33$           
02/11/2014 1 106(A) Q2A ASSOCIATES LLC FINANCIAL SERVICES-1/6/14-1/17/14 2,698.50$           
02/11/2014 1 107(A) REEVES WHEEL ALIGNMENT, INC. REPAIRS 2,210.07$           
02/11/2014 1 108(A) SWIM LLC UTILITY DIRECTOR SERVICES 1/19/14-2/1/14 1,218.00$           
02/11/2014 1 122597 AETNA REFUND  355.50$              
02/11/2014 1 122598 ACCUMED BILLING INC AMBULANCE BILLING SERVICES & STATE REPORTING 4,065.55$           
02/11/2014 1 122599 AFLAC EMP DEDUCTION-AFLAC PAYMENT 586.96$              
02/11/2014 1 122600 THE ARGUS PRESS PRINTING OF LEGAL NOTICES/ADS 502.53$              
02/11/2014 1 122601 KEITH A BAILEY REIMBURSEMENT 69.51$                
02/11/2014 1 122602 CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC/GAS SERVICE 6,763.68$           
02/11/2014 1 122603 CONTRACTORS RENTAL CORP RENTAL OF 6" PUMP W/DELIVERY AND PICKUP 1,050.00$           
02/11/2014 1 122604 JUDY ELAINE CRAIG COURIER SERVICE 189.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122605 D & D TRUCK & TRAILER PARTS PARTS 764.87$              
02/11/2014 1 122606 DALTON ELEVATOR JAN 2014-CYLINDER RENT/SUPPLIES 678.84$              
02/11/2014 1 122607 DELUX TROPHIES-AWARDS-GIFTS PLAQUE 50.00$                
02/11/2014 1 122608 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT CONCEPTS INC FEBRUARY 2014 ADMIN FEE 120.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122609 FASTENAL COMPANY SUPPLIES/PARTS 211.35$              
02/11/2014 1 122610 FRONTIER PHONE SERVICE 815.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122611 FUOSS GRAVEL COMPANY CLASS II SAND-101.71/TONS 421.08$              
02/11/2014 1 122612 GILBERT'S DO IT BEST HARDWARE & APP REFRIGERATORS (3) AND SUPPLIES 2,058.38$           
02/11/2014 1 122613 H20 COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM SERVICES 1,299.38$           
02/11/2014 1 122614 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES SUPPLIES 118.95$              
02/11/2014 1 122615 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORPORATION WTP-WP 200 COLILERT 874.24$              
02/11/2014 1 122616 INDEPENDENT NEWSPAPERS CROSSING GUARD AD-1/29/14-2/2/14 25.60$                
02/11/2014 1 122617 INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO INC SUPPLIES 263.15$              
02/11/2014 1 122618 INTERSTATE BILLING SERVICE INC SUPPLIES 481.67$              
02/11/2014 1 122619 LANDMARK SURVEYING, P.C. SURVEYING WORK ON HOWARD AND ELM STREETS 4,500.00$           
02/11/2014 1 122620 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. ELECTRICAL WORK 774.40$              
02/11/2014 1 122621 MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE CENTER PRE-EMPLOYMENT DRUG SCREEN-J SHEPARD 91.25$                
02/11/2014 1 122622 MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE EDUCATION DEPT BASIC LIFE SUPPORT CARDS (7) 24.50$                
02/11/2014 1 122623 MICHIGAN GOVERNMENT FINANCE PAT SKUTT-SPRING SEMINAR 99.00$                



3

02/11/2014 1 122624 MORTON SALT INC ROAD SALT-638.89/TONS 29,127.00$        
02/11/2014 1 122625 MSHDA 2014 SPRING REGIONAL TRAINING-S WARREN-RILEY 15.00$                
02/11/2014 1 122626 NORTH AMERICAN OVERHEAD DOOR INC DOOR REPAIR 221.97$              
02/11/2014 1 122627 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS PARTS 24.14$                
02/11/2014 1 122628 OFFICE SOURCE CHAIRS (3) 900.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122629 OFFICEMAX INC SUPPLIES 300.64$              
02/11/2014 1 122630 POLICE OFFICERS LABOR COUNCIL EMP DEDUCTION-UNION DUES 859.50$              
02/11/2014 1 122631 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION REPLACE PACKING IN LIBRARY ELEVATOR 1,471.00$           
02/11/2014 1 122632 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY MEDICAL GROUP T FELKER 114.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122633 SMITH JANITORIAL SUPPLY SUPPLIES 679.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122634 SPRINT JANUARY 2014-SERVICE/EQUIPMENT CHARGES 1,047.55$           
02/11/2014 1 122635 STATE OF MICHIGAN ANNUAL STORM WATER PERMIT FEE FOR WWTP 260.00$              
02/11/2014 1 122636 STECHSCHULTE GAS & OIL, INC. LUBES 460.63$              
02/11/2014 1 122637 SUMBERA EXCAVATING, INC. 22A GRAVEL-49.53/TONS 383.86$              
02/11/2014 1 122638 UNIQUE PAVING MATERIALS CORPORATION WINTER MIX COLD PATCH-51/TONS 4,862.85$           
02/11/2014 1 122639 USDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT REFUND 348.55$              
02/11/2014 1 122640 VALLEY LUMBER SUPPLIES 16.90$                
02/11/2014 1 122641 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC DISPOSAL CHARGES-1/16/14-1/31/14 4,185.92$           
02/11/2014 1 122642 WIN'S ELECTRICAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO SUPPLIES 257.68$              
02/19/2014 1 109(E) MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM JAN 2014 POLICE COMMAND CONTRIBUTIONS 9,327.16$           
02/21/2014 1 110(A) C & B AIR COMPRESSORS INSTALL NEW DRIVE SEAL ON NORTH AIR COMP 3,320.00$           
02/21/2014 1 111(A) LOGICALIS INC JANUARY 2014-NETWORK ENGINEERING SUPPORT 8,092.00$           
02/21/2014 1 112(A) OFFICEMAX INC SUPPLIES 139.79$              
02/21/2014 1 113(A) POLYDYNE INC AF 4500 POLYMER 2,205.00$           
02/21/2014 1 114(A) PRIORITY ONE EMERGENCY INC PARTS 773.01$              
02/21/2014 1 115(A) Q2A ASSOCIATES LLC FINANCIAL SERVICES-1/19/14-2/1/14 3,139.50$           
02/21/2014 1 116(A) REEVES WHEEL ALIGNMENT, INC. REPAIRS 54.60$                
02/21/2014 1 117(A) SWIM LLC UTILITIES DIRECTOR SERVICES-2/2/14-2/15/14 1,638.00$           
02/21/2014 1 118(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER CONTRACT SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-55.5/HRS 1,015.65$           
02/21/2014 1 119(A) YORK REPAIR INC WWTP-150 HP MOTOR REBUILD. 4,977.37$           
02/21/2014 1 122643 MICHAEL LEVERE ASH CONTRACT SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-61.5/HRS 1,125.45$           
02/21/2014 1 122644 BATTERIES PLUS #445 OFD-6V LEAD BATTERIES (3) 50.97$                
02/21/2014 1 122645 BODMAN LLP JAN 2014-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 122.50$              
02/21/2014 1 122646 BROWN & STEWART P C PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 9,744.55$           
02/21/2014 1 122647 C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. OFFICE PRO PLUS 365.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122648 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORE HYD HOSE FOR TRUCKS ETC 1,620.77$           
02/21/2014 1 122649 CITY OF CORUNNA JAN 2014 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FOR OPD 1,739.40$           
02/21/2014 1 122650 CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC/GAS SERVICE 22,852.80$        
02/21/2014 1 122651 VOID VOID

Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process
02/21/2014 1 122652 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS MARCH 2014 BROADBAND INTERNET AND FEES 495.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122653 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF MICHIGAN DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUM 4,398.94$           
02/21/2014 1 122654 DUPERON CORPORATION SCREENING EQUIPMENT FOR WWTP 2,605.00$           
02/21/2014 1 122655 EVERGREENS INC ORIGINAL LOST VOID

Void Reason: REISSUED #122703
02/21/2014 1 122656 FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, I ENGINEERING SERVICES VOID

Void Reason: WRONG VENDOR-S/B ORCHARD HILTZ & MCCLIMENT
02/21/2014 1 122657 BENJAMIN R FREDERICK DINNER FOR KENDAL COLLEGE DELEGATION 202.86$              
02/21/2014 1 122658 FRONTIER TRAFFIC SIGNAL PHONE SERVICE 104.95$              
02/21/2014 1 122659 GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC QUICKLIME-45.05/TONS 6,307.00$           
02/21/2014 1 122660 HENRY PRATT COMPANY LLC PARTS 857.23$              



4

02/21/2014 1 122661 HSBC MORTGAGE REFUND 1,071.77$           
02/21/2014 1 122662 IMPRESS TECHNOLOGIES LLC DRILL HOLES IN MAN HOLE COVERS (20) 200.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122663 INDEPENDENT NEWSPAPERS EXECUTIVE SECRETARY AD 31.40$                
02/21/2014 1 122664 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS SUPPLIES 104.83$              
02/21/2014 1 122665 LAKESIDE EQUIPMENT CORPORATION WWTP-STUB SHAFT BOLTS 71.00$                
02/21/2014 1 122666 LAMPHERE'S DWP-NEW MOTOR IN FURNACE 448.88$              
02/21/2014 1 122667 LANDUSE/USA, LLC HOUSING AND RESIDENTIAL ANALYSIS 2,000.00$           
02/21/2014 1 122668 TYLER JOHN LEPPANEN INTERN EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT-40 HRS 200.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122669 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. REPAIRS 215.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122670 MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE CENTER LAB-DRAWING FEE 17.00$                
02/21/2014 1 122671 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF FIRE CHIEFS 2014 WINTER WORKSHOP-KEVIN LENKART 90.00$                
02/21/2014 1 122672 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL CLERKS MEMBERSHIPS-AMY KIRKLAND/ROXANE CRAMER 130.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122673 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTION 828.96$              
02/21/2014 1 122674 MORTON SALT INC ROAD SALT-351.84/TONS 16,040.38$        
02/21/2014 1 122675 MUTUAL EYE CLAIM AUDITS VISION COVERAGE PREMIUM 546.60$              
02/21/2014 1 122676 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE INC MERCURY ANALYSES-1/23/14 258.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122677 OFFICE SOURCE WWTP-PRINTER 179.99$              
02/21/2014 1 122678 OWOSSO BOLT & BRASS CO SUPPLIES 325.87$              
02/21/2014 1 122679 GARY L PALMER PLAN REVIEW FEE 100.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122680 RADIO SHACK DEALER 22-H074 SUPPLIES 7.99$                   
02/21/2014 1 122681 RUTHY'S LAUNDRY CENTER JANUARY 2014-PUBLIC SAFETY DRY CLEANING 350.50$              
02/21/2014 1 122682 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. PAINT 335.88$              
02/21/2014 1 122683 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER AT LARGE 17,894.05$        
02/21/2014 1 122684 SHIAWASSEE FAMILY YMCA PAYROLL DEDUCTION-MEMBERSHIPS 190.77$              
02/21/2014 1 122685 SOUTHSIDE CAR WASH JAN 2014-OPD CAR WASHES 51.00$                
02/21/2014 1 122686 STATE OF MICHIGAN STATE OF MICHIGAN WITHHOLDING TAX 11,407.66$        
02/21/2014 1 122687 STATE OF MICHIGAN EMS AGENCY AND VEHICLE APPLICATION FEES 175.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122688 STECHSCHULTE GAS & OIL, INC. FUEL 18,777.71$        
02/21/2014 1 122689 TROXLER ELECTRONIC LABORATORIES, IN DISPOSAL OF TROXLER DENSITY TESTER 745.00$              
02/21/2014 1 122690 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC FEB 2014-REFUSE SERVICE 367.95$              
02/21/2014 1 122691 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC WWTP-SLUDGE DISPOSAL  2/1/14-2/16/14 2,745.81$           
02/21/2014 1 122692 WM FLOYD CO 2013 SHIAWASSEE DISTRICT LIBRARY BOILER 27,825.00$        
02/21/2014 1 122693 XYLEM/GODWIN PUMPING MATERIALS FOR WWTP 2,175.54$           
02/28/2014 1 122694 HUSKA JEFFERY UB refund for account: 5827570004 17.27$                
02/28/2014 1 122695 PERKINS MARCUS UB refund for account: 2277240003 24.86$                
02/28/2014 1 122696 HANDL HENRY UB refund for account: 5844570002 47.13$                
02/28/2014 1 122697 PLATT AARON UB refund for account: 1559500014 14.20$                
02/28/2014 1 122698 TILSON LYNNETTE UB refund for account: 2607090006 50.67$                
02/28/2014 1 122699 D & M TRANSPORT UB refund for account: 4288650001 75.27$                
02/28/2014 1 122700 REMAX REAL ESTATE PROFESSIONALS UB refund for account: 1260000011 53.16$                
02/28/2014 1 122701 ORCHARD HILTZ & MCCLIMENT INC ENGINEERING SERVICES 290.00$              
02/28/2014 1 122702 PHYSICIANS HEALTH PLAN OF MID-MICH HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM 81,472.29$        
02/28/2014 1 122703 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER AND EVERGREENS INC OWOSSO DRAIN ASSESSMENT (2012) 237.85$              
02/28/2014 1 122704 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM 2,557.94$           

1 TOTALS:

(3 Checks Voided)
Total of 185 Disbursements: 635,568.80$      

Bank 10 OWOSSO HISTORICAL FUND



5

02/05/2014 10 4520 REX'S FURNITURE REPAIR & REFINISHING REPAIR TO HUMIDOR 100.00$              
02/05/2014 10 4521 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS TV/INTERNET 81.65$                
02/05/2014 10 4522 SPECIALTY SALVAGE LLC TRASH SERVICE-GOULD HOUSE 35.97$                
02/05/2014 10 4523 MITCHELL SPEERS ORIENTATION PACKET & STORAGE 86.99$                
02/12/2014 10 4524 FRONTIER 515 N WASHINGTON ST APT 3 41.47$                
02/12/2014 10 4525 SECURITY ALARM CO INC 224 CURWOOD CASTLE DR-3/1/14-5/31/14 60.00$                
02/12/2014 10 4526 MITCHELL SPEERS INDEX DIVIDERS/ORIENTATION PACKET 117.53$              
02/24/2014 10 4527 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 515 N WASHINGTON ST #3 26.64$                
02/24/2014 10 4528 CONSUMERS ENERGY ELECTRIC/GAS SERVICE 1,125.10$           
02/24/2014 10 4529 ROSEMARY MAGLEY CASTLE/GOULD HOUSE CLEANING 100.00$              
02/24/2014 10 4530 LORRAINE WECKWERT AREA RUG FOR CASTLE 48.00$                

10 TOTALS:

Total of 11 Disbursements: 1,823.35$           

Bank 2 TRUST & AGENCY
02/12/2014 2 6323 OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 185,415.96$      
02/12/2014 2 6324 SHIAWASSEE AREA TRANSPORTATION AGENCY REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 183.95$              
02/12/2014 2 6325 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER COLLECTIONS 108,920.77$      
02/12/2014 2 6326 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER TRAILER FEES-144 LOTS 360.00$              
02/12/2014 2 6327 SHIAWASSEE DISTRICT LIBRARY REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 16,870.27$        
02/24/2014 2 6328 OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS COLLECTIONS 797,659.99$      
02/24/2014 2 6329 SHIAWASSEE AREA TRANSPORTATION AGENCY REAL/PP COLLECTIONS 634.12$              
02/24/2014 2 6330 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER COLLECTIONS 450,625.60$      
02/24/2014 2 6331 SHIAWASSEE DISTRICT LIBRARY COLLECTIONS 83,370.48$        

2 TOTALS:

Total of 9 Disbursements: 1,644,041.14$   

REPORT TOTALS:

(3 Checks Voided)
Total of 205 Disbursements: 2,281,433.29$   



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: March 31, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Transportation Alternatives Program (Enhancement) for the trailhead and 

retaining wall features for the James Miner Riverwalk. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend City Council approve the attached resolution, supporting proposed improvements to the James 
Miner Riverwalk, specifically the retaining wall and trailway features as described within the City’s DIG project, 
as the first step in seeking MDOT Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) funds for the project.   
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The City’s Downtown Infrastructure Grant (DIG) application has been approved by the state. City administration 
recommends expanding certain parts of the work proposed to include the deteriorated walkway located under 
the M-21 bridge and adjacent to the Shiawassee River.  The Michigan Department of Transportation offers a 
competitive funding program named Transportation Alternatives Program that is available to communities like 
Owosso to assist with such projects.  Eligible activities for TAP funding include improvements to non-motorized 
transportation facilities that enhance walkability for both pedestrians and bicyclists.  TAP funds are currently 
available for projects that may be completed during the FY2015 construction season and the City proposes to 
enter an application for funding to replace the retaining wall and trailway features that are part of the James 
Miner Riverwalk near the Main Street bridge.  Some of the work proposed was included as part of the DIG 
project and instead of removing it from the grant the City wishes to expand the project limits to include those 
portions of the James Miner Riverwalk that pass under and around the M-21 Bridge to leverage the grant to the 
benefit of the City.  The objective of this project is to replace deteriorated sections of the riverwalk and improve 
them to meet current ADA standards.  TAP funds, if approved, will replace city’s share of the costs associated 
with these improvements.  The City would bid the project in accordance with DIG guidelines and seek 
reimbursement for its share of the cost from TAP funds.  This work will improve mobility and safety for all non-
motorized traffic that utilizes the James Miner Riverwalk. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $123,300.00; of which CDBG funds from the DIG project will pay 
$56,550.00 and MDOT TAP funds, if approved by MDOT, will pay $56,550.00.  The City will be responsible for 
providing full design engineering and construction administration services for the project.  Approval of the 
attached resolution will indicate Council’s willingness and support for the project, and the funding required of the 
City.  MDOT requires the submission of such a resolution prior to consideration of any application for funds. 
 
If MDOT does not approve the project and/or the necessary Transportation Alternatives Program funds, then 
the project will be reduced to its current state as described within the DIG application. 
 
This document originated by: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR  
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM FUNDS  

FOR JAMES MINER RIVERWALK IMPROVEMENTS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, possesses a walkway along the 
Shiawassee River that includes an area running under the Main Street bridge, known as the James Miner 
Riverwalk; and 
 
WHEREAS, significant improvements must be made to the walkway and adjacent retaining wall to repair 
damage caused by flooding and to bring the trail into compliance with current ADA standards; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation offers special funding known as Transportation 
Alternative Program Funds for improvements to non-motorized route systems, such as the James Miner 
Riverwalk; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is eligible to receive TAP funds as a municipality within a federal-aid 
small urbanized area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso proposes to procure Transportation Alternative Program funds for the 
purpose of providing a 50 percent (50%) federal match for the City’s CDBG proceeds as outlined in its 
application. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to proceed with improvements to the James Miner Riverwalk in the area of 
the Main Street bridge. 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso application for Transportation Alternative Program funds to partially 

fund the necessary improvements to the James Miner Riverwalk and is willing to 
participate in this program. 

 
THIRD: The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the application documents and 

City staff is further authorized to obligate City funds as its match of the project cost. 
 

 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: March 13, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: General Engineering Services Agreements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend approval of three agreements for general engineering services.  Specifically, it is 
recommended that City Council approve agreements with: 
 

1. Spicer Group (St Johns, MI) 
2. Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber (Lansing,MI) 
3. Fleis & Vandenbrink (Flint, MI) 

 
The agreements have been approved by the city manager as to substance and form.  Individual 
resolutions approving each of these three agreements appear under the regular order of business. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On December 17, 2013, the city of Owosso received written proposals from fourteen engineering firms to 
provide general engineering services to the City.  These services are necessary to support the City’s 
engineering staff in carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Engineering Division whenever 
workload demands the addition of a consultant’s staff and expertise.  The proposals were evaluated and 
scored by a committee of city staff using a quality based selection procedure.  This process was 
necessary to fulfill a requirement to receive future federal and state funding through MDOT and other 
state agencies.  The criteria used to evaluate proposals included the firm’s reputation, staffing, ability to 
meet schedule and budget control. The five highest scored firms were interviewed in person to determine 
the final ranking.  It is recommended to enter into contracts with the three highest ranked firms.  The term 
for these agreements will be renewed annually through June 30, 2017. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
City staff will request individual quotes from the three firms whenever there is a need for a specific 
service.  These quotes will be evaluated and administered in accordance with the city of Owosso’s 
Purchasing Policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services    

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

SPICER GROUP, 
FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC., AND 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan, has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to secure professional engineering services for various public improvement projects in the city; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a quality based selection process was developed to select a qualified engineering firm; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Spicer Group, Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering Inc., have been determined as most qualified to perform engineering services through this 
process. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city of Owosso, county of Shiawassee, state of Michigan: 
 

FIRST: that the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to employ the firms of Spicer Group, Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber 
Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc., to provide professional engineering 
services for future engineering projects; and 

 
SECOND: that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit A, Agreement for Professional Engineering Services 
with Spicer Group; and 

 
THIRD that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit B, Agreement for Professional Engineering Services 
with Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc.; and 

 
FOURTH that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit C, Agreement for Professional Engineering Services 
with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc.; and 

 
FIFTH that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed to receive cost proposals 

from each of these three firms for future projects and make recommendation to the City 
Council for acceptance and award in accordance with the city of Owosso Purchasing 
Policy for a period renewed annually through June 30, 2017. 

 













































































































 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: March 12, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: M52 & M21 Traffic Signal Cost Sharing Agreements  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached cost sharing agreements for the installation and maintenance 
of new traffic signals installed as a part of the M21/M52 reconstruction project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
As a part of the reconstruction of M21 & M52 the State will be installing new traffic signals along both 
highways.  This work will include the installation of new stop lights, poles, signage, and pedestrian 
crossing signals.  Some equipment will simply update older, currently installed signals while other 
equipment will consist of entirely new signals.  The following chart lists the location of the signals 
involved, whether they are existing or new, and the proportion of the cost to be borne by the City. 
 

Location Cross Street Signal Type New/Existing 
Cost Sharing 

MDOT City 
M21 Brooks Street School flasher sign New 100% 0% 
M21 Cedar Street Pedestrian Update Existing 50% 50% 
M21 Chestnut Street Pedestrian Update Existing 50% 50% 

M21 Chipman Street 
Pedestrian &  
Left Turn Update Existing 50% 50% 

M52 King Street Pedestrian Update Existing 50% 50% 

M52 Oliver Street 
Pedestrian &  
Left Turn Update 

Existing 50% 50% 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Despite the fact that the complexity of many of the signals to be installed has increased the overall 
estimated costs for the contracts in question are reduced thanks to the use of more energy efficient 
equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:  Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH  
THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

GOVERNING THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS ON M21 AND M52 
AS A PART OF THE M21 / M52 RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has numerous traffic and pedestrian signals along highways 21 and 52; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan intends to reconstruct portions of these highways within the City limits; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, as a part of the reconstruction project new traffic signals and pedestrian signal systems will 
be installed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the State desire written agreements dictating the responsibilities of each party in 
regard to the installation and maintenance of said signals. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Owosso that: 
 

FIRST: The attached agreements dictating the installation and maintenance of traffic signals on 
M21 and M52, numbered as follows, are hereby approved: 

 
 76012-01-002 
 76012-01-004 
 76061-01-001 
 76061-01-002 
 76061-01-007 
 76061-05-014  
 
SECOND:   The Accounts Payable Department is hereby authorized to pay the State of Michigan for 

charges accrued according to the above agreements. 
 
THIRD:   The money shall be paid from the Major Street Fund. 



% %Total 100 $8640

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

 City of OWOSSO

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76012  0  % #  % 50 $432

OWOSSO City  % #  % 50 $432

04/12/2006

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION Modernization       Traffic Signal   

09/27/2006OWOSSO

M52 (SHIAWASSEE) @ OLIVER ST MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76012-01-002

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

16566

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.



09/06/13 



09/06/13 



09/06/13 



09/06/13 



09/06/13 



%Total 100 $1,008

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

 City of OWOSSO

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76012  0 %  % 50 $504 2

OWOSSO City 0 %  % 50 $504 2

02/07/2014

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION Modernization       Traffic Signal   

08/24/2006OWOSSO

M52 (SHIAWASSEE) @ KING ST MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Revision Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76012-01-004

02/07/2014

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

REVISED PARTICIPATION

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.



09/06/2013



09/06/2013



09/06/2013



09/06/2013



% %Total 100 $7680

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

 City of OWOSSO

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76061  0 %  % 50 $384

OWOSSO City 0 %  % 50 $384

02/07/2014

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION Modernization       Traffic Signal   

OWOSSO

M21 (MAIN) @ CHIPMAN ST MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76061-01-001

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.













%Total 100 $840

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

 City of OWOSSO

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76061  0 %  % 50 $420 2

OWOSSO City 0 %  % 50 $420 2

02/07/2014

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION Modernization       Traffic Signal   

07/13/2006OWOSSO

M21 (W MAIN) @ CEDAR MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Revision Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76061-01-002

02/07/2014

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

REVISED PARTICIPATION

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.











%Total 100 $864

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

 City of OWOSSO

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76061  0 %  % 50 $432 2

OWOSSO City 0 %  % 50 $432 2

02/19/2014

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION New          Traffic Signal   

11/22/2004OWOSSO TWP

M21 (W MAIN) @ CHESTNUT ST MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Revision Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76061-01-007

02/19/2014

Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

REVISED PARTICIPATION

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.











% %Total 100 $960

MDOT

shall beD 

MDOT

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for performing signal maintenance type

Engineer of Traffic and Safety

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Q1549 (3/89)

By

Title:By

For Michigan Department of
Transportation use ONLY.

By

Date

APPROVED: APPROVED: APPROVED:

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

By

APPROVED: APPROVED: SIGNED:

By

Date

By

(Title of Authorized Official) (Title of Authorized Official)

* Two copies of resolution must be submitted with this form.

(See Reverse Side for an Outline of Policy)

  

  

Date Date

Date Date

Engineer of Operations

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Deputy Director, Field Services

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for handling bills and/or leased line interconnection billings shall be

INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE

Per Cent Per Cent

PARTICIPATION

AGENCY (BY CONTRACT)

Estimated
Annual Cost

Estimated
Cost

Dept of Transportation 76061  0 %  % 100 $96

02/07/2014

*  Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolutions formally adopted by their respective governing bodies (and herein
submitted), the undersigned hereby agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above
traffic signal control on the basis of the division of costs as determined by the provision of applicable statutes.  Details

Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, and the proper credit of salvaged value shall be issued to all
parties upon removal of the equipment, in proportion to their share of original cost.

 . of installation are as shown on attached Michigan Department of Transportation plan dated

Lansing

District

County

Region

TSC

09/06/2013

Shiawassee County

This Agreement Cancels and Supercedes All Previous Cost Agreements AND is terminable on thirty days notice by any party.

LOCATION Modernization       School Flasher   

OWOSSO

M21 (MAIN) @ BROOKS MDOT Plan No.

Installation Date

Work Auth No.

Typed Date
 

76061-05-014

COST AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
CONTROL

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION X

16566



P1549 (2/89) OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The percentage of expense shall be divided on the basis of number of signalized directions.
    For instance, in the case of a four-legged intersection of which two state trunk line legs are 
    both signalized and only one of the two county legs is signalized, 66-2/3% shall apply to the 
    state trunk line and 33-1/3% to the county road.

2.  A divided highway shall be considered the same as a two-way undivided highway.

3.  The signalized direction for pedestrians shall be treated in the same manner as signalized 
     vehicular direction.

4.  In case of a contract municipality, the municipal share of expense shall include percentages
    for signalized directions on municipal streets, plus the municipal maintenance contract 
    percentage of the share allocated to the signalized directions on state trunk lines.

5.  In case of a signal being located at the intersection of two or more state trunk line
     maintenance sections, the "Trunk Line Share" shall be allocated to that maintenance section
     which extends in the north direction. If none extends in the north direction, then to the 
     first leg encounterd starting from the north and progressing in a clockwise direction.

OUTLINE OF POLICY RELATING TO DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE COSTS
FOR ELECTRICAL SCHOOL SIGNS

The "Maintenance Cost Agreement for Traffic Signal Controls" between the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and the county, township, city or village is based on the following policy:

1. The Michigan Department of Transportation shall pay the entire cost of mechanical and
    routine maintenance, and the cost of energy billings.

EXPLANATION OF CODE FOR "TYPE OF INSTALLATION"

SAMPLE 1 - 4W - 3C - S - A

1 2 3 4 5

Explanation

1. The number of heads of each particular type of unit.
2. The number of signalized ways in the unit - (4 ways).
3. The number of colors facing in each direction - (3 colors).
4. How signal is supported: S-Span Suspension, M-Mast Arm, B-Bracket, P-Post or pedestal. 
5. Solid or adjustable heads: S-Solid, A-Adjustable. 

A pedestrian signal on a pedestal is designated by:   1-1W-2C-P-A.
A pedestrian signal on a pole is designated by:   1-1W-2C-B-A.

EXPLANATION OF MDOT PLAN NUMBER

SAMPLE
65032 - 01 - 001

Explanation
1 2 3

1. Control section number.
2. Type of operation. (01-Stop and Go; 02-Flasher; 03-Keep Right Sign; 04-School Speed Limit;
   05-School Flasher ; 06-Street Lighting; 07-Illuminated Sign; 08-Emergency Traffic Signal;
   09-Misc.).
3. Assigned number within a control section.



09/06/13 









 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: March 3, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Cost Agreement between MDOT and City for rehabilitation of the Gould Street Bridge over 

the Shiawassee River 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend City Council approve MDOT Cost Agreement No. 14-500 for the rehabilitation of the Gould Street 
Bridge over the Shiawassee River. The Agreement has been approved by the City Manager as to substance 
and form.  A resolution to approve the Agreement is attached for your consideration.   
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On February 11, 2011, City Council resolved that city staff make application to MDOT for Federal Critical Bridge 
funds to rehabilitate the Gould Street Bridge.  This Agreement fixes the rights and obligations of both parties to 
proceed with the project.  The work includes epoxy overlay of the bridge deck, pin and hanger replacement, 
partial cleaning and coating of structural steel, riprap, deck joint replacement, approaches, and maintaining 
traffic; together with necessary related work. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $424,400; of that amount Federal Critical Bridge funds will pay 
$339,504.00 and State Local Bridge funds will pay $63,657.00.  The City’s estimated share is $21,239.00.  The 
City will also be responsible for any cost overruns exceeding the $424,400.00 estimated for the project. Funds 
for the City’s share of cost are available in Account No. 202-451-818000-GOULDBRIDGE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This document originated by: Marlene Jungnitsch, Executive Secretary 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF MDOT COST AGREEMENT FOR 
REHABILITATION OF GOULD STREET BRIDGE OVER THE SHIAWASSEE RIVER 

 
 
WHEREAS, within the City of Owosso there is a bridge over the Shiawassee River carrying traffic on 
Gould Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, this bridge must be regularly maintained for the safety and expediency of users of the bridge; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this maintenance is costly and complex, requiring expertise outside that of City staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has applied for, and received, Federal Critical Bridge Funds to assist in the 
rehabilitation of the bridge and the Michigan Department of Transportation has agreed to oversee the 
project; and  
 
WHEREAS, after review, city staff recommends approval of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 14-500  for 
Rehabilitation of Gould Street Bridge over the Shiawassee River; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation requires the City of Owosso adopt a resolution 
indicating its willingness to participate in the rehabilitation of Gould Street Bridge over the Shiawassee 
River. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to approve MDOT Contract No. 14-500 for the rehabilitation of the Gould 
Street Bridge over the Shiawassee River. 

 
SECOND: That the City of Owosso is willing to participate in the project cost as illustrated within 

said contract. 
 
THIRD: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the Agreement as attached. 
 
FOURTH: The City Council hereby directs staff to allocate $21,239 from the major street fund and 

approves payment for services upon completion, or as otherwise requested by the State, 
in accordance with the contract. 

 
  
 
 



























































03/11/2014

Subject:           Building Department Report for February, 2014

From:              Charles Rau, Building Official

To:                   Owosso City Council

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

Date:                

Electrical $0 $1,470 12
Mechanical $0 $1,590 11
Plumbing $625 $1,355 8
Res. Add/Alter/Repair $159,200 $1,250 7
Res. Multi-Family $10,000 $170 1

* Memorial 4th floor permit a year ago

MMS

Totals $5,835 39$169,825

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          -          11

2013 COMPARISON TOTALS

$2,097,579 $16,250February, 2013 TOTALS * 33

03/11/2014



1/4Enforcements By Category 03/12/14

FEBRUARY, 2014

RentalPrevious Status

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0073 Letter Sent 02/21/141311 MACK ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

BUILDING VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0049 Resolved 02/05/14 03/07/14311 DIMMICK ST REF TO DPW VAC

ENF 14-0052 Resolved 02/06/14 02/28/14734 N HICKORY ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 14-0058 Resolved 02/07/14 02/25/14116 STRATFORD DR REF TO RAU VAC

ENF 14-0075 Letter Sent 02/24/14211 S ELM ST LETTER SENT COMM

ENF 14-0078 Letter Sent 02/25/14110 ELLIOT ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 5

RentalPrevious Status

FRONT YARD PARKING
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0077 Letter Sent 02/27/141305 MACK ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 14-0081 Resolved 02/28/14 03/01/14116 STRATFORD DR REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 14-0082 Resolved 02/28/14 03/02/14714 N WASHINGTON ST REF TO POLICE Y

Total  Entries: 3

RentalPrevious Status

GARBAGE & DEBRIS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0060 REF TO POLICE 02/11/14818 S LYON ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 14-0061 Resolved 02/11/14 02/14/141009 W MAIN ST REF TO POLICE COMM

ENF 14-0065 REF TO POLICE 02/17/14838 WOODLAWN AV REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 14-0066 REF TO POLICE 02/20/141102 BEEHLER ST REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 14-0070 Resolved 02/20/14 02/22/14623 GROVER ST REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 14-0071 Resolved 02/20/14 03/01/14620 E COMSTOCK ST REF TO POLICE Y



2/4Enforcements By Category 03/12/14

FEBRUARY, 2014

ENF 14-0072 Verbal Notice 02/20/14615 N SAGINAW ST VERBAL NOTICE VAC

ENF 14-0076 Letter Sent 02/26/14113 S WASHINGTON ST LETTER SENT COMM

Total  Entries: 8

RentalPrevious Status

MISC VEHICLE VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0053 Resolved 02/06/14 02/21/14417 ABBOTT ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 14-0054 Resolved 02/06/14 02/13/14421 ABBOTT ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 14-0056 Resolved 02/07/14 02/24/14404 N SAGINAW ST REF TO POLICE Y

Total  Entries: 3

RentalPrevious Status

MISC.
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0059 Resolved 02/11/14 02/17/141308 HERMAN ST REF TO RAU N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0074 Letter Sent 02/24/14720 WRIGHT AV VN SENT Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

RENTAL UNIT VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 14-0057 Extension Granted 02/07/14833 LINGLE AV EXTEN GRANTED Y

ENF 14-0062 Resolved 02/12/14 02/25/14110 ELLIOT ST REF TO RAU Y

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

SIDEWALK/SNOW & ICE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



3/4Enforcements By Category 03/12/14

FEBRUARY, 2014

ENF 14-0039 Resolved 02/03/14 02/10/141307 MACK ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0040 Resolved 02/03/14 02/04/141309 MACK ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0041 Resolved 02/03/14 02/10/14723 ELMWOOD ST SENT TO DPW N

ENF 14-0042 Resolved 02/03/14 02/10/14718 N DEWEY ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0043 Resolved 02/03/14 02/04/14401 E KING ST SENT TO DPW N

ENF 14-0044 Resolved 02/03/14 02/11/141436 W MAIN ST WO SUBMITTED VAC

ENF 14-0045 Resolved 02/04/14 02/10/14738 N HICKORY ST SENT TO DPW N

ENF 14-0046 Resolved 02/04/14 02/10/14422 ABBOTT ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0047 Resolved 02/04/14 02/10/141300 S CHIPMAN ST SENT TO DPW N

ENF 14-0050 Resolved 02/06/14 02/11/141022 S LYON ST DPW TO CHECK N

ENF 14-0051 Resolved 02/06/14 02/10/14735 N HICKORY ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0055 Resolved 02/07/14 02/11/14115 STRATFORD DR SENT TO DPW VAC

ENF 14-0063 Resolved 02/13/14 02/17/14213 S LANSING ST SENT TO DPW Y

ENF 14-0064 Resolved 02/13/14 02/13/141542 W MAIN ST SENT TO DPW VAC

ENF 14-0067 Resolved 02/20/14 03/04/141101 N BALL ST SENT TO DPW TO SHOVEL N

ENF 14-0068 Resolved 02/20/14 02/26/14620 FRAZER AV GAVE TO DPW TO INSPECT N

ENF 14-0069 Resolved 02/20/14 02/26/14203 S DEWEY ST DPW TO CHECK Y

ENF 14-0079 Resolved 02/27/14 03/04/14915 QUEEN ST SENT TO DPW N

ENF 14-0080 Resolved 02/28/14 03/10/141262 N SHIAWASSEE ST GAVE TO DPW N

Total  Entries: 19

Total Records: 43 Total Pages: 3



4/4Enforcements By Category 03/12/14

FEBRUARY, 2014

RENTAL COLUMN DEFINITIONS

Y - Yes, it's a rental
N - No, it's not a rental - owner occupied
APTS - Apartment Building
COMM - Commercial
REPO - Repossession
TRAIL - Trailer Park
VAC - Vacant House
VL - Vacant Lot
IND - Industrial
HOME OCC - Home Occupation



Status Definitions 
For Code Violations 

 
Complaint Logged – Complaint has been received.  It will then be forwarded to the inspecting department. 
 
Door Notice – When a lawn needs mowing, a notice is hung on the door of the home with the information or 
the ordinance and when it will be rechecked. 
 
Extension Granted – If a person calls and is working on resolving the situation, but needs more time, an 
extension of the due date is granted to accommodate their particular circumstances. 
 
Letter Sent – Letter is sent to owners and occupants of the property explaining what the violation is; the 
expected remedy; a copy of the applicable ordinance; possible consequences of non-compliance; a date to be 
completed by; and a phone number for questions.  
 
N & O Sent – Notice and Order Sent.  This would be the same as the Letter Sent with stronger wording and 
consequences.  This is most often used for junk, abandoned, or unlicensed vehicles. 
 
No Violation – No violation was found at the time of the inspection.  Violation may have been corrected 
after filing of complaint before inspection occurred, or it may have been a false complaint or wrong address 
submitted. 
 
Re-Opened – A violation may have been resolved, but violation was repeated soon after.  The record is re-
opened so those dealing with the complaint can see the history of the situation. 
 
Red-tagged – Sometimes a property a red-tagged because it is unfit for human occupancy.  This is a notice 
that no one may live there until conditions are resolved. 
 
Ref – This means referred.  This could be referred to several different departments.  The Building Official, if 
it regards a structure that requires his attention.  The DPW if the violation requires a clean-up.   
 
Ref to Police – Complaint is referred to the police for an initial verification and description so that a letter 
may be sent to owners and tenants.  The complaint is later referred again to the police for recheck to confirm 
that violation has been corrected and complaint can be dismissed and marked resolved. 
 
Resolved – Correction of complaint has been completed; cleaned-up has been completed by owner or by the 
city department of public works; vehicle may have been hauled away or property licensed; lawn mowed; 
violation has been remedied and property is now in compliance. 
 
Stop Work Order - Construction is occurring without a permit and proper inspections.  This may result in a 
dangerous, unsafe situation and work must stop until permit application, plan review, or inspections are 
completed.   
 
Ticket Issued – Police Department has issued a ticket.  Violator will then have a limited time to comply or 
another ticket could be issued with a higher fine until violation has been resolved. 
 
Verbal Notice – Violator may have been notified by telephone call or site visit of a required resolution. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 202 S WATER ST · OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 · (989)725-0580 · FAX (989)725-0528 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2014  
 
TO:  Owosso City Council 
   
FROM: Kevin Lenkart 
 
RE:  February 2014 Report 
  
 
 
 
Attached are the statistics for the police department for February 2014.  This report 
includes activity for the month of February and year-to-date statistics.  Also attached is 
a list of Field Contacts, which are incidents that the police are dispatched to that 
require no further follow up than the officers initial response. 

 
There were no reported burning violations for February.   

 
 

 
 

    
  

 
 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
Director of Public Safety 

Kevin Lenkart 

 



Case Assignment/Clearance Report For February,  2014

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER, 5039 03/06/2014  12:29

AssignedOffenses
Percent
ClearedCleared Assigned Cleared

Current Month Year-To-Date

PART I OFFENSES
ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 %

AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 1 0 2 1 50 %

BURGLARY 8 9 11 14 127 %

LARCENY 13 11 25 21 84 %

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 1 2 2 100 %

SIMPLE ASSAULT 5 4 9 9 100 %

ARSON 0 0 0 0 0 %

FORGERY & UTTERING 0 0 2 0 0 %

COUNTERFEITING 0 0 0 0 0 %

FRAUD 8 2 11 3 27 %

EMBEZZLEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 %

WEAPON CRIMES- CARRY, POSS, 0 0 0 0 0 %

PROSTITUTION 0 0 0 0 0 %

SEX OFFENSES 1/ UNDER AGE - 0 0 1 0 0 %

NARCOTICS VOLIATIONS 3 2 8 6 75 %

GAMBLING VIOLATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 %

VANDALISM-DAMAGE-DESTRUCTIO 0 0 0 0 0 %

HOMICIDE 1 0 0 0 0 0 %

HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 %

RAPE / NON - FAMILY 0 0 0 0 0 %

SEX OFFENSES 2 0 1 1 2 200 %

PARENTAL KIDDNAP 0 0 0 0 0 %

KIDDNAPPING 0 0 0 0 0 %

BURGLARY RESIDENTIAL 1 0 4 0 0 %

BURGLARY COMMERCIAL 0 0 1 1 100 %

RESISTING/OBSTRUCTING 1 0 1 0 0 %

40 30 78 59 75PART I OFFENSES %

PART II OFFENSES
PAROLE/PROBATION VIOLATION 2 3 2 3 150 %

NATURAL DEATH 3 3 7 3 42 %

RETAIL FRAUD 1 1 2 2 100 %

RUNAWAY 4 4 6 6 100 %

VIOLATION PPO/ COURT ORDER 0 0 0 0 0 %

Page 1r_case8



AssignedOffenses
Percent
ClearedCleared Assigned Cleared

Current Month Year-To-Date

FAMILY NONSUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0 %

SUSPICOUS DEATH 0 0 0 2 0 %

TRAFFIC OFFENSES OTHER 6 3 10 5 50 %

CRIMINAL CASE OTHER 0 0 0 0 0 %

WARRANT ARREST 14 10 32 24 75 %

SUSPICOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 3 2 4 3 75 %

WARRANT ADVISED 0 0 0 0 0 %

MENTAL ORDER-ECO / TDO 6 3 18 12 66 %

DOMESTIC ASSAULT/SITUATION 15 9 25 17 68 %

ILLEGAL DUMPING 0 0 0 0 0 %

FOUND PROPERTY 0 0 5 4 80 %

RECOVERED PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0 %

ANNOYING PHONE CALLS 0 0 0 0 0 %

TRESPASSING 2 0 3 1 33 %

DOA 0 0 0 0 0 %

ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 1 1 2 2 100 %

MISSING PERSON 0 0 0 0 0 %

WARRANT OBTAINED 0 0 0 0 0 %

PROPERTY-LOST 0 0 0 0 0 %

SAFEKEEPING OF WEAPON 0 0 0 0 0 %

SUICIDE AND ATTEMPTED SUICIDES 0 0 0 0 0 %

TRAFFIC - HIT & RUN 7 4 10 7 70 %

FIRES - NOT ARSON 0 0 1 0 0 %

LOST PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0 %

NON-CRIMINAL CASE 5 4 16 14 87 %

CRIMES AGAINST FAMILY & 1 2 2 2 100 %

DRIVING WHILE IMPAIRED 2 4 8 8 100 %

LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS 4 0 7 1 14 %

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 2 0 3 1 33 %

OTHER CRIMES 14 10 33 31 93 %

IMPOUND /  TOW FOLLOW-UP 0 0 0 0 0 %

FALSE ALARM 0 0 0 0 0 %

MOTOR VEHICLE CRASH 32 25 68 54 79 %

THREATS 0 0 0 0 0 %

PROPERTY CRIMES, POSS, SALE, 0 0 0 0 0 %

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 6 3 10 6 60 %

130 91 274 208 75PART II OFFENSES %

170 121 352 267Grand Totals: %75

Case Assignment/Clearance Report For February,  2014 Page 2



Field Contact By Reason Summary Report
Date Range: 02/01/2014 - 02/28/2014, Agency: OWPD

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER, 5039 03/06/2014  12:30

Reason for Contact Count

911 Hang Up 16

Abandoned Vehicle 1

False Alarm Bank 1

False Alarm Commercial 17

False Alarm Residential 5

All Other Service Reports 7

Animal Complaints Other 16

Assist Ambulance 4

Assist To Other Dept 20

Assist Officer 1

Attempt To Locate 8

Barking Dog 1

Civil Dispute 14

Code Enforcement - Owosso 1

Disturbance 5

Failed To Pay 1

Fight / No Assault 1

Gun Permit/register 41

Harrassment 6

Investigate Vehicle 1

Liquor Inspections 3

Loud Music 2

Motorist Assist 9

Open Door 2

Ordinance Violation 2

Parking Problem 26

Pawn Ticket 129

Peace Officer 9

Private Property Pda / Non Reportable 1

Reckless Driver 3

Road Hazard 8

Suspicious Person 14

Suspicious  Situation 22

Page 1r_fldc2



Reason for Contact Count

Suspicious Vehicle 9

Transport - Other 2

Trouble With Kids 11

Trouble With Neighbor 15

Trouble With Subject 37

Phone Harassment 2

Unwanted Subject 1

Vacation Check On Home 1

Vehicle Inspection 1

Warrant Arrest 1

Welfare Check 17

Work Traffic 118

Field Contact By Reason Summary Report Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 202 S WATER ST ·  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ·  (989)725-0580 ·  FAX (989)725-0528 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   March 6, 2014  
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart 
  Director of Public Safety 
 
RE:  February Fire Report 
  
 
During the month of February 2014: 
 
Fire Department responded to 205 Ambulance calls. 
 
 131 - were city residents 
 36 - were non-residents 
 38 - required no transport 
 
 54 - transfers  
        39 - were residents      
     15 - were non-residents  
     10 - in town transfers 
     5 - in-facility transports 
    

Fire Department responded to 12 Fire calls. 
 
  1 - False alarm 
 1 - Smoke Detector  
  1 - Public Service Assist  
  2 - Cancelled en route  
  2 - Gas Leaks   
  1 - Vehicle fire  
 2 - Electrical / arcing  
 1 - Power line  
 1 - Dumpster fire  
 1 - Vehicle Extrication  

   
The Fire Department also completed the following: 
 
 30 Rental Inspections 
 12 Re-inspections 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
Director of Public Safety 

Kevin Lenkart 



draft 
 
 

___________________________ 
Parks & Recreation Commission                                                                                             
Page 1 of 2 
February 24, 2014 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Parks & Recreation Commission 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
February 24, 2014 – 6 p.m. 

 
Call to order:  The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman Espich. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance:   The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all in attendance. 
 
Roll Call:   Taken by Recording Secretary Marty Stinson. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Michael Espich; Vice-Chairman Jeff Selbig, Commissioners Nikki 

Hathaway and Kristen Woodbury. 
 
Members Absent: Commissioner Tim Alderman. 
 
Others Present: Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 

Development; and Daniel Vargas. 
 
Approve Agenda for February 24, 2014 meeting. 
A motion to approve the agenda for February 24, 2014 meeting was made by Commissioner 
Hathaway and supported by Commissioner Selbig. 
Ayes: all.  Motion carried. 
 
Approve Minutes from January 27, 2014 meeting: 
A motion to approve the minutes from the January 27, 2014 meeting was made by Commissioner 
Hathaway and supported by Commissioner Woodbury. 
Ayes: all.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Comments:   
John Adams was in attendance from the Leadership Shiawassee 2013-14 Class.  He was visiting to get a 
better idea of civic activities.  He works for Baker College.  He also introduced his classmate, Roxane 
Cramer who works for the City of Owosso.   
 
Communications:  

1. Staff memorandum 
2. January 27, 2014 minutes 
3. Fred Meijer CIS Trail information 
 

Business: 
1. Bentley Park Updates 

Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community Development, stated that the 
park information is the same.  The weather restricts any changes at this time.  Kevin Lenkart will come to 
the March meeting to discuss security cameras. 
 
 2.  Plunge for the Parks 
Chairman Espich commented that the Vice President of the LAFCU out of Lansing is donating one third 
of the ice rink money - $2,000.  Carrie Rathbun will be making the press release about the plunge.  
Commissioner Hathaway has contacted Baker College for a warming center; there are several maybes for 



draft 
 
 

___________________________ 
Parks & Recreation Commission                                                                                             
Page 2 of 2 
February 24, 2014 

plungers; Commissioner Selbig has a Facebook setup; there will be life vests; the fire dept will have 
underwater winter suits; and two fire fighters will be in the water with a ladder to help the plungers out of 
the water.   
 
There was also discussion about if there was a Pay Pal type account or Shiawassee Foundation – 
something like what disc golf donations can do.  There was a sample T-Shirt e-mailed from Tim – the 
board thought it was awesome.   
 
March 22 is the plunge at 2 p.m. at Hopkins Lake – Discussion about another news release. 
 
6:29 p.m.  Daniel Vargas arrived. 
 
 3.  Fred Meijer CIS Trail Annual Meeting Invitation 
Ms. Montenegro was asked to send invitations to the Parks and Recreation Commission and the Council 
for March 12 from 7 to 9 p.m. at the Agri Building in St. Johns.  There is no cost for the Board to attend.  
We would like to make Owosso a hub and invited discussion about what can we do to make Owosso 
attractive to visitors.  Chairman Espich said that Commissioner Alderman wanted to attend this event. 
 
Public / Board Comments:   
 
Mr. Vargas made a bike rack and has $43 invest in it.  Could he be reimbursed?  It will hold about 22 
bikes.  It is welded and he will donate it for the cost of materials.  He will come back on March 24th when 
it is completed.  It will need a recommendation to the city council for their acceptance. 
 
Mike Raffaelli has a class project with salmon eggs to be released in an approved stream later in the year.  
His class wants to adopt Hopkins Lake and learn about maintaining water quality.  Trails in and garbage 
out.  They will have an ice fishing expedition of about 75 fourth graders this Friday and maybe we can 
have a declaration for the kids’ efforts. 
 
Adjournment: 
A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Commissioner Woodbury and was supported by 
Commissioner Selbig.  The meeting adjourned at 6:50 p.m.  
Ayes: all.  Motion carried.  
 
       _____________________________ 
       Susan Montenegro, Secretary 
mms 



Draft 

Planning Commission – February 24, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OWOSSO PLANNING COMMISSION 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
February 24, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

 
CALL TO ORDER:    Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairman William Wascher. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all in attendance. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Roll Call was taken by Recording Secretary Marty Stinson. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chairman William Wascher; Vice-Chairman Frank Livingston, Secretary Tom 

Kurtz, Commissioners David Bandkau, Craig Weaver and Randy Woodworth 
(arrived 7:03 p.m.). 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:    Commissioners Ron Schlaak, Brent Smith, Thomas Taylor.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 

Development.   
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ TO APPROVE 
THE AGENDA FOR FEBRUARY 24, 2014.  
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MINUTES APPROVAL: 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BANDKAU, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON TO APPROVE 
THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 25, 2013. 
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff memorandum       
2. PC minutes from November 25, 2013 
3. Zoning map of East Main from Washington to Gould 
4. Potential land use map 
5. Zoning ordinances from Lansing, Flint, Novi and New Baltimore as examples 
6. Isotrope Wireless article 

 
COMMISSIONER / PUBLIC COMMENTS:   NONE 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  NONE 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW:  NONE 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS:    
7:03 p.m.  Commissioner Woodworth arrived. 

1.  Westown Progress - discussion 
Ms. Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community Development, shared with the 
Commission that she had a family emergency this month and the Westown rezoning had not proceeded on 
schedule.  Chairman Wascher asked Marty to read from the previous minutes what the changes were to be 
made.  The full list is to be prepared for the rezoning for a public hearing for the March Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 

2.  East Main from Washington to Gould – discussion of possible land uses 
Commissioner Woodworth feels it should all be commercial.  Chairman Wascher commented about the Overlay 
Office District.  Commissioner Bandkau commented that this is an area that doesn’t know what it wants to be.  
He’d rather change businesses come in the area.  Commissioner Woodworth prefers changing the path as he 
sees a resurgence of retail happening.  Commercial with parking is in demand.  Commissioner Weaver asked 
how do they encourage speculation in the absence of buyers.  Commissioner Kurtz asked about the two blocks 
between Dewey and Gould if they were deep enough.  Commissioner Woodworth suggested that the alleys 
would have to be vacated and include the houses on Comstock.   



Draft 

Planning Commission – February 24, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
At the next meeting a map will be prepared showing the discussed properties and the desired zonings along E. 
Main Street being:  438, 442, 448, 830, 832, 834, 910, 827, 831, 835 and 917 with the proposed zoning being 
changed to B-4 along with 108 S. Oak Street.  Those proposed being changed to OS-1 would be 502, 508, 512 
and 515 E. Main Street. 
 

3.  Wireless tower and antenna – planning stages. 
Per Ms. Montenegro, there is nothing in our zoning ordinance about wireless towers and antennas.  In the 
packets for tonight, there are several examples submitted.  Discussion involved putting the policies before 
Attorney Bill Brown for the final review; towers should be out of timber zone; towers are income generators; 
how do we have a cell tower without screening as we have an ordinance regarding mechanical screening; and 
one opinion was that New Baltimore had a good residential ordinance. 
 
COMMISSIONER / PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
This was Commissioner Woodworth’s first meeting and Chairman Wascher welcomed him to the Planning 
Commission asked him to tell the board about himself.  He said he has Woodworth Commercial Real Estate 
and has been in the business since 2000.  He did the K-Mart project and is getting started on the Matthews 
Building.  He grew up in Corunna, graduated from Corunna High School and went to MSU.  He is married to 
Molly McGinity and has a 20 month old and a six week old. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON, TO ADJOURN 
AT 8:15 P.M.  
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
      
      ________________________________________ 
      Tom Kurtz, Secretary 
mms 
 



	   REGULAR	  MEETING	  MINUTES	  –	  MARCH	  2014	  
	  	  

1	  

REGULAR	  MEETING	  MINUTES	  
OWOSSO	  DDA	  /	  MAIN	  STREET	  
Council	  Chambers,	  City	  Hall	  
March	  5,	  2014	  –	  7:30	  am.	  
	  
MEETING	  CALLED	  TO	  ORDER	  at	  7:38	  a.m.	  by	  Dave	  Acton.	  
	  
ROLL	  CALL	  was	  taken	  by	  Secretary	  Alaina	  Kraus.	  
	  
MEMBERS	  PRESENT:	  Chairman	  Dave	  Acton,	  Authority	  Members	  Benjamin	  
Frederick,	  Ken	  Cushman,	  Meredith	  Landino,	  Dawn	  Gonyou,	  Secretary	  Alaina	  Kraus,	  
and	  Treasurer	  James	  Demis	  
	  
MEMBERS	  ABSENT:	  Authority	  Members	  Bill	  Gilbert	  and	  Lance	  Omer	  
	  
OTHERS	  PRESENT:	  Josh	  Adams,	  DDA	  /Owosso	  Main	  Street	  Manager;	  Susan	  
Montenegro,	  City	  of	  Owosso;	  Jeff	  Deason,	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
	  
AGENDA:	  
MOTION	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  MEMBER	  CUSHMAN,	  SUPPORTED	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  
MEMBER	  LANDINO	  TO	  APPROVE	  THE	  AGENDA	  FOR	  MARCH	  5,	  2014.	  
YEAS	  ALL.	  MOTION	  CARRIED.	  
	  
MINUTES:	  
MOTION	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  MEMBER	  CUSHMAN,	  SUPPORTED	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  
MEMBER	  GONYOU	  TO	  APPROVE	  THE	  MINUTES	  WITH	  MODIFICATION	  FOR	  THE	  
MEETING	  OF	  FEBRUARY	  5,	  2014.	  
YEAS	  ALL.	  MOTION	  CARRIED.	  
	  
PUBLIC	  /	  BOARD	  /	  STAFF	  COMMENTS:	  	  
None	  
	  
COMMITTEE	  UPDATES	  
1.	  Design	  –	  Authority	  Member	  Bill	  Gilbert	  
They	  are	  getting	  ready	  to	  push	  for	  the	  fundraiser	  for	  the	  flower	  program	  and	  are	  
getting	  bids	  for	  the	  flower	  baskets.	  There	  will	  be	  less	  baskets	  than	  last	  year	  to	  
optimize	  the	  ones	  we	  have.	  	  
	  
They	  are	  also	  moving	  forward	  on	  the	  drinking	  glass	  fundraiser.	  The	  rest	  of	  the	  
bicycle	  racks	  will	  be	  ready	  by	  April	  1st.	  There	  should	  be	  recognition	  arranged	  for	  
Baker	  for	  making	  the	  racks.	  
	  
The	  first	  three	  wayfinding	  signs	  should	  be	  ready	  to	  go	  by	  the	  first	  of	  April.	  
	  
2.	  Economic	  Restructuring	  –	  Authority	  Member	  Demis	  

AKKirkland
Draft



	   REGULAR	  MEETING	  MINUTES	  –	  MARCH	  2014	  
	  	  

2	  

Randy	  Woodworth	  visited	  the	  meeting	  and	  shared	  information	  about	  six	  buildings	  
downtown.	  For	  example,	  the	  Muller/Miller	  building	  will	  be	  being	  turned	  into	  20	  
apartments	  upstairs	  with	  retail	  downstairs.	  
	  
The	  committee	  will	  also	  be	  making	  further	  recommendations	  on	  the	  Market	  Study	  
and	  discussed	  how	  to	  distribute	  that	  information.	  Adams	  and	  Omer	  also	  met	  with	  
Kristov	  from	  Michigan	  Main	  Street	  and	  they	  are	  willing	  to	  share	  all	  of	  their	  
resources	  to	  use	  with	  the	  Market	  Study,	  even	  though	  it	  was	  not	  done	  through	  them.	  
	  
3.	  Organization	  –	  Authority	  Member	  Landino	  
The	  main	  focus	  has	  been	  getting	  the	  IB	  workplans	  into	  place	  including	  examples	  like	  
storefront	  clean-‐up	  and	  partnerships	  with	  other	  partner	  groups	  downtown.	  
	  
An	  adjustment	  was	  made	  to	  our	  newsletter	  publication	  schedule.	  The	  newsletter	  
will	  go	  out	  quarterly	  with	  special	  editions	  during	  busy	  times	  of	  the	  year.	  Landino	  
requested	  that	  other	  committees	  and	  members	  share	  any	  information	  that	  they	  
have	  on	  events/news	  so	  that	  there	  is	  a	  diverse	  view	  of	  downtown	  activity.	  
	  
There	  are	  now	  four	  groups	  of	  students	  in	  town	  who	  need	  hours	  include	  National	  
Honor	  Society,	  Career	  Tech	  ed,	  and	  Baker	  students	  in	  addition	  to	  IB.	  The	  goal	  is	  to	  
have	  150-‐300	  students	  involved	  in	  projects	  in	  the	  13/14	  year.	  
	  
The	  Business	  Owner	  sub-‐committee	  is	  heading	  up	  the	  downtown	  business	  presence	  
at	  the	  Shiawassee	  Home	  Garden	  Business	  Expo	  coming	  up	  this	  weekend.	  The	  booth	  
will	  be	  about	  30	  feet.	  John	  Hankerd	  is	  making	  a	  display	  of	  pictures	  of	  downtown	  for	  
the	  backdrop	  including	  names	  of	  downtown	  businesses	  and	  logos.	  Right	  now	  eight	  
businesses	  are	  committed	  to	  be	  there.	  There	  is	  still	  space	  if	  others	  wish	  to	  join	  them.	  
	  
Cushman	  asked	  about	  getting	  students	  involved	  with	  local	  businesses	  to	  get	  hands	  
on	  experience	  with	  business.	  The	  primary	  concern	  is	  questions	  like	  is	  there	  pay	  for	  
involvement	  with	  a	  business.	  Frederick	  also	  brought	  up	  that	  we	  should	  find	  out	  
what	  students	  goals	  are	  from	  this	  and	  make	  sure	  that	  we	  are	  meeting	  those	  as	  well,	  
which	  may	  be	  in	  part	  through	  another	  program	  outside	  of	  the	  IB	  one.	  
	  
4.	  Promotion	  –	  Manager	  Adams	  
The	  Image	  Builders	  meeting	  is	  continuing	  to	  meet	  and	  come	  up	  with	  plans	  to	  
address	  the	  larger	  community.	  The	  Business	  meeting	  has	  been	  averaging	  8-‐10	  
businesses.	  Otherwise,	  summer	  planning	  for	  events	  like	  the	  car	  show	  are	  moving	  
forward.	  
	  
ITEMS	  OF	  BUSINESS:	  
1.	  CHECK	  REGISTER	  APPROVAL.	  
There	  is	  nothing	  abnormal	  in	  this	  period.	  
	  
SEE	  BOARD	  PACKET	  FOR	  CHECK	  REGISTER	  
	  



	   REGULAR	  MEETING	  MINUTES	  –	  MARCH	  2014	  
	  	  

3	  

MOTION	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  MEMBER	  FREDERICK,	  SUPPORTED	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  
MEMBER	  GONYOU	  TO	  APPROVE	  THE	  CHECK	  REGISTER	  FOR	  FEBRUARY	  2014	  AS	  
PRESENTED.	  
YEAS	  ALL.	  MOTION	  CARRIED.	  
	  
2.	  BUDGET	  REPORT.	  
There	  wasn’t	  much	  activity	  in	  February,	  but	  our	  TIF	  payment	  should	  arrive	  in	  
March.	  
	  
5.	  BUDGET	  APPROVAL	  
A	  problem	  has	  arisen	  from	  requiring	  committees	  to	  fund	  their	  projects	  and	  having	  
the	  revenue	  and	  expenses	  in	  the	  budget,	  then	  allowing	  them	  to	  spend	  their	  
budgeted	  amount	  even	  if	  the	  money	  has	  not	  been	  raised.	  This	  has	  eroded	  our	  fund	  
balance.	  We	  are	  still	  solvent,	  but	  it	  is	  a	  problem.	  
	  
Moving	  forward	  we	  will	  have	  a	  set	  number	  of	  how	  much	  money	  we	  have	  to	  spend	  
based	  upon	  tax	  and	  TIF.	  From	  that	  amount	  is	  first	  withdrawn	  the	  expenses	  that	  
must	  be	  paid	  (DDA	  and	  OMA	  loan	  payments,	  operating	  expenses,	  etc.).	  The	  
remainder	  is	  distributed	  among	  the	  committees	  and	  will	  only	  reflect	  fundraising	  in	  
the	  budget	  when	  the	  funds	  have	  been	  raised.	  As	  soon	  as	  those	  funds	  come	  in,	  the	  
committee	  will	  be	  able	  to	  spend	  it.	  
	  
We	  can	  amend	  the	  budget	  up	  to	  the	  end	  of	  the	  fiscal	  year.	  Demis	  is	  checking	  into	  
whether	  these	  amendments	  then	  need	  to	  go	  to	  City	  Council.	  This	  has	  been	  a	  problem	  
the	  city	  has	  faced	  as	  well.	  
	  
The	  amounts	  allotted	  to	  each	  committee	  in	  the	  proposed	  budget	  are	  based	  on	  
previous	  experience.	  Cushman	  brought	  up	  that	  it	  needs	  to	  be	  kept	  in	  mind	  that	  some	  
projects,	  like	  those	  in	  ER,	  may	  need	  more	  money	  than	  is	  currently	  there	  to	  support	  
and	  expand	  those	  committees,	  which	  in	  turn	  create	  more	  funds	  for	  the	  group	  as	  a	  
whole.	  
	  
MOTION	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  MEMBER	  CUSHMAN,	  SUPPORTED	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  
MEMBER	  KRAUS	  TO	  APPROVE	  THE	  2014/2015	  BUDGET	  AS	  PRESENTED	  BY	  JIM	  
DEMIS.	  
YEAS	  ALL.	  MOTION	  CARRIED.	  
	  
3.	  PARK	  STREET	  IMPROVEMENTS	  
Construction	  begins	  imminently.	  
	  
4.	  DIG	  UPDATE	  
We	  received	  the	  huge	  check	  last	  week.	  All	  work	  must	  be	  completed	  by	  the	  end	  of	  
2014	  in	  order	  to	  have	  funds	  refunded	  for	  work	  completed	  which	  means	  the	  
Chamber	  must	  move	  out	  before	  December.	  The	  city	  is	  currently	  looking	  for	  an	  
engineer	  to	  head	  up	  the	  project.	  If	  we	  do	  not	  start	  construction	  before	  June	  1st,	  we	  
have	  to	  ask	  for	  an	  extension	  or	  that	  agreement	  is	  null	  and	  void.	  Normally	  this	  would	  



	   REGULAR	  MEETING	  MINUTES	  –	  MARCH	  2014	  
	  	  

4	  

be	  24	  months,	  but	  we	  are	  benefitting	  from	  another	  committee	  not	  meeting/using	  
the	  funds	  of	  the	  grant.	  
	  
Deason	  shared	  that	  they	  are	  hoping	  to	  have	  bank	  financing	  sorted	  out	  in	  the	  next	  
few	  weeks.	  They	  will	  need	  a	  temporary	  location	  to	  work	  from	  while	  the	  work	  is	  
being	  done	  on	  the	  property	  and	  building.	  Gonyou	  said	  she	  may	  have	  a	  space	  that	  
they	  can	  use.	  Deason	  is	  still	  trying	  to	  figure	  out	  what	  their	  needs	  are	  for	  this	  and	  will	  
keep	  the	  board	  updated.	  
	  
Demis	  mentioned	  that	  there	  may	  be	  a	  temporary	  hit	  on	  the	  budget	  between	  when	  
bond	  payments	  begin	  and	  TIF	  begins	  to	  be	  impacted.	  
	  
PUBLIC	  /	  BOARD	  /	  STAFF	  COMMENTS:	  	  
Frederick	  brought	  up	  that	  we	  should	  speak	  with	  Tuttle	  about	  CTE	  and	  ways	  to	  work	  
with	  them	  on	  programs	  for	  students.	  Acton	  will	  attend	  the	  school	  foundation	  board	  
meeting	  on	  March	  10th	  at	  noon.	  
	  
MOTION	  MADE	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  MEMBER	  CUSHMAN,	  SUPPORTED	  BY	  AUTHORITY	  
MEMBER	  GONYOU	  TO	  ADJOURN	  AT	  8:38	  AM.	  	  
YEAS	  ALL.	  MOTION	  CARRIED.	  
	  
	  
____________________________________________________________	  
Alaina	  Kraus,	  Secretary	  



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

February Check Register  
By Check Number	  



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

1954 02/13/2014 Joshua Adams Manager Wages Owosso Main Street Checking

02/13/2014 Manager wages 1/31/14 to 2/13/14 296-200-999.101 MANAGER WAGES -2,115.38

TOTAL -2,115.38

1955 02/13/2014 Kelly's Refuse Trash Services Owosso Main Street Checking

02/03/2014 Trash Services for 2/1/14 through 2/28/14 296-200-831.000 MAINTENANCE -500.00

TOTAL -500.00

1956 02/13/2014 Rehmann Robson Audit Costs Owosso Main Street Checking

02/13/2014 Audit for the year ended 6/30/13 296-200-818.000 CONTRACT SER -2,700.00

TOTAL -2,700.00

1957 02/28/2014 Joshua Adams Manager Wages Owosso Main Street Checking

02/28/2014 Manager Wages 2/14/14 through 2/27/14 296-200-999.101 MANAGER WAGES -2,115.38

TOTAL -2,115.38

1958 02/28/2014 Shiawassee Chamber of Commerce Owosso Main Street Checking

02/18/2014 2014 Expo - vendor booth charges 296-695-818.000-VOLPARTY -461.00
02/18/2014 2014 Chamber non-profit membership fee 296-695-818.000-VOLPARTY -139.00

TOTAL -600.00

1959 02/28/2014 DayStarr Communication Phone forwarding service Owosso Main Street Checking

02/18/2014 Phone forwarding service - 3/1/14 to 3/31... 296-200-728.000 OPER SUPPLIES -15.16

TOTAL -15.16

12:44 PM Owosso Main Street
03/03/14 Check Register - By Check Number

February 2014

Page 1


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	140303CouncilMinutes

	STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT
	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1 & 2 Special Assessment Districts - Set Public Hearing
	3 Boards and Commissions Appointment
	4 DowntownFarmersMarketPermission
	5 DowntownFarmersMarketAnnualBlockPartyPermission
	6 Warrant479
	7 CheckRegister-February2014

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1 TAPGrantApplication
	2 GeneralEngineeringServicesContracts
	3 TrafficSignalCostSharingAgreements
	4 GouldStreetBridgeRehabilitationAgreement

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1 BuildingReport-February2014
	2 CodeEnforcementReport-February2014
	3 PoliceReport-February2014
	4 FireReport-February2014
	5 ParksAndRecreationCommissionMinutes-140224
	6 PlanningCommissionMinutes-140224
	7 DDAMainStreetMinutes-140305

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



